EUREKA USD 389 TRANSPORTATION HANDBOOK



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Transportation Handbook	. 1
Mission Statement	. 1
Pre-Employment Testing	. 1
Employment	2
Phone Numbers	2
General Line of Authority	2
Transportation Supervisor	3
Building Principals	3
School Bus and Vehicle Drivers	3
Operating Rules and Regulations	4
Moving Regulations	
Other Transportation Regulations	5
Procedure for School District Vehicle Requests	. 6
Accident and Emergency Procedures	7
Cell Phone Use	7
Job Requirements	8
Special Event Trips	8
Public Relations	
Transportation Pick-up and Drop-Off	10
Bus Driver Procedures and Regulations	11
Bus Driver Daily Schedule	11
Route Assignments	12
Substitute Bus Drivers	.12
Interior Lighting	12
Responsibility of Driver and Sponsor on Bus Trips	12
School Bus Activity Transportation Policy	13
Routes	14
Bus Rules	15
After Leaving the Bus	16
Procedure for Discipline Situations	16
School Bus Discipline Policy	17
Driver Discipline Procedure	
Termination	
Leave of Absence or Personal/Professional	19
Railroad Crossing	
Activity Bus Transportation	20

TRANSPORTATION HANDBOOK

The driver of a school vehicle is an important member of the educational team. The responsibilities are considerable; ranging from absolute safe driving under all conditions coupled with strict observance of vehicular laws, to influencing the attitude and mood of the passengers by the manner of the driver's control and personality.

Motor vehicle operations represent an extremely large loss exposure to the school district because of the potential liability costs typically associated with vehicular accidents. All employees operating district-owned vehicles shall be required to engage in safe driving practices. The lives of people and the reputation of the school district are at stake every time a district-owned vehicle is operated.

The role of driver is difficult, and requires a great deal of responsibility; yet is rewarding and satisfying with the knowledge of an important contribution to the total educational program.

The information contained within this handbook sets forth the operating practices, The Kansas School Transportation Regulations, Standards, Statutes, and Guidelines as required by the Kansas Department of Education, and the Eureka Board of Education in its transportation policies.

Drivers of school vehicles are expected to be familiar with the contents and to follow all requirements.

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of Eureka Unified School District #389 is to provide and facilitate opportunities for learners to achieve additional academic competencies and creative use of talent for lifelong learning and growth. To this mission we dedicate the district's time, talent, and resources.

PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING

1. Any applicant offered a safety sensitive position, or an employee transferring to a safetysensitive position, must first take a pre-employment drug test. This applicant or employee must receive a verified negative test result before performing any safety sensitive function. Details of pre-employment testing and exemptions can be found in 49 CFR, part 382.301.

2. USD 389 Eureka must request alcohol and controlled substances information from previous employers in accordance with the requirement of 49 CFR, parts 40.25 and 382.413.

3. Applicants offered a safety sensitive position and employees transferring to a safetysensitive position must sign release of information forms allowing USD 389 Eureka to receive alcohol and controlled substances information from previous employers.

4. Applicants must also sign a statement of whether he/she has tested positive or refused test on any pre-employment alcohol or drug tested administered by an employer to which the applicant applied but did not obtain safety sensitive transportation work covered by DOT rules during the past (2) years.

EMPLOYMENT

As in any part of the education process, it is desirable to employ those persons that provide examples of good behavior and character.

Drivers must:

- 1. Be dependable, punctual and have a good attendance record.
- 2. Have knowledge and experience in getting along with people.
- 3. Be self-reliant, honest and use speech free of undesirable language.
- 4. Be able to understand and communicate the rules of safe transportation to students.

Drivers will be neat and clean and practice good hygiene. They will be expected to dress in a manner appropriate for professional representation of the school district. Unduly revealing fashions or articles of clothing that advertise illegal substances, tobacco or alcoholic beverages are prohibited. Bus drives must wear shoes; flip flops, sandals or heels higher than two (2) inches are not permitted for safety reasons.

PHONE NUMBERS

In case of an accident or breakdown, call one of the following:

Bus Barn	620-583-8205
Russell He witt	620-583-5291 (home) 620-750-0165 (cell)
James Ryan	620-750-0167 (cell)
Eureka Jr/Sr High	620-583-7428
Marshall Elementary	620-583-5537
District School Office	620-583-5588
Scott Hoyt	620-750-0373

GENERAL LINE OF AUTHORITY

The Eureka School Board is ultimately responsible for pupil transportation. The Superintendent of Schools is charged with administering the policies and regulations of the Eureka School Board. The Superintendent shall delegate authority and responsibility to the Transportation Supervisor, to the building Principals, and to individual drivers as stipulated in this policy manual.

TRANSPORTATION SUPERVISOR 1. Line of Authority

The Transportation Supervisor shall be responsible to the Superintendent and shall make periodic reports. The Supervisor shall also work in conjunction with the principals. 2. Advisor

The Supervisor shall advise the Superintendent and the School Board on matters concerning the transportation problems of the school district.

3. In Charge of Maintenance

The Supervisor shall be in charge of all vehicle maintenance, shop, and shall schedule and direct the work therein.

4. Responsibilities

A. The Supervisor shall be responsible for maintaining, servicing, and repairing of all school owned vehicles.

1. It shall be the Supervisor's responsibility to have all buses in proper repair and on the

road.

2. All spare buses shall be in proper repair so that they can safely be put on the road at any time.

B. The Supervisor shall schedule vehicles for all extra trips and shall make driver assignments for the same.

C. The Supervisor shall procure and assign all bus driver substitutes and assist in the location of prospective drivers.

D. The Supervisor shall be responsible for filing transportation reports as required by the Superintendent.

E. The Supervisor shall submit evidence of having passed a physical examination, of having completed a first aid course, and to take the defensive driving course at least once every two (2) years.

F. The Supervisor shall hold a valid C.D.L. suitable for driving a school bus.

BUILDING PRINCIPALS

The Principal shall assist the transportation director and drivers with discipline problems, which are referred in a timely manner, and route completed documents to the appropriate person.

SCHOOL BUS AND VEHICLE DRIVERS

1. Line of Authority

All drivers shall be directly responsible to the Transportation Supervisor, their building Principals, and the School Superintendent.

2. Employment Period

Drivers shall begin work the first school day of the year and their employment shall end on the last day of the school term.

3. Operating Rules and Regulations

All drivers of district-owned vehicles, and those using their personal vehicles in pursuit of school district business, will comply with all applicable laws of the State of Kansas in addition to the following regulations.

1. Drivers will carry their valid driver's license with them at all times when operating a motor vehicle. In the event an employee has their license suspended or driving privileges revoked by the division of motor vehicles or other judicial or law enforcement agency, that employee shall have their driving status reclassified until such time as their privileges are reinstated. Failure to report a change in license status on the part of any employee who operates district-owned vehicles, or uses their personal vehicle for school district business, will result in disciplinary action.

2. Drivers of all vehicles shall wear seat belts at all times.

3. When transporting student passengers in any vehicle other than a school bus, the driver shall require that all students wear set belts or the appropriate passenger safety restraints.

4. Drivers will inspect their assigned vehicle prior to daily operation. Bus drivers shall check fluid levels, lights, mechanical equipment, tires and general condition of the vehicle. Any and all deficiencies not correctable on the part of the employee shall be immediately reported to the Transportation Supervisor.

5. No person shall be permitted to ride on the sides, tailgate, roof or any other part of the vehicle not specifically designated for seating.

6. In case of any accident, regardless of severity, the local law enforcement agency within the jurisdiction shall be called to investigate and prepare a report.

7. The driver is responsible for enforcing the rules for safe riding and shall promptly report any misconduct to the proper school authority.

8. The use of tobacco or illegal drug in any school vehicle is prohibited.

9. Alcoholic beverages of any kind are prohibited on any school vehicle.

10. Drivers are not permitted to make repairs or adjustments to a school vehicle except certain emergency road repairs as may be deemed necessary at the verbal direction of the Supervisor or a mechanic.

11. School vehicles shall stop only at pick-up and discharge points designated by the Transportation Supervisor.

12. The driver shall not leave the school vehicle unattended with students on board. The driver shall not leave the keys in the ignition at any time except when on the service center lot. The driver will not leave the vehicle until the vehicle is off and the brake is set.

13. Stop and turn signals shall be used whenever turning, stopping or changing traffic lanes.

14. School transportation vehicles shall at all times yield to other vehicles and be driven in a safe and courteous manner.

15. The driver shall report all hazards and unsafe loading conditions to the Transportation Supervisor immediately. The vehicle will not move when the passenger load count exceeds the manufacturers load limit.

16. Bus drivers are subject to drug testing on short notice in compliance with State requirements for random drug testing.

MOVING REGULATIONS

- 1. Maximum speed for school buses.....Posted speed on hard surface roadway

- 4. Dirt Roads-School Buses......45 MPH or less
- 6. School Loading Areas......10 MPH Maximum
- 7. All signals or regulatory signs shall be strictly observed and obeyed.
- 8. No vehicle either on or off the lot shall be moved until doors are closed.

OTHER TRANSPORTATION REGULATIONS

<u>Communications</u>

All communications covering school business from the Board to employees and from employees to the Board shall be made through the Superintendent of Schools.

Servicing School Vehicles

The Transportation Supervisor shall schedule various buses to be fueled at certain stations. Each driver shall be responsible for keeping the bus serviced with fuel. No vehicle shall be fueled while it contains passengers. No private vehicles are to be serviced by the school district.

Unauthorized Passengers

The driver shall not allow the bus to be overloaded. The driver shall not haul unauthorized passengers. Young children or preschool age should not be hauled except by permission of the principal, special education director, superintendent's office or transportation supervisor.

No student may be discharged at any point other than at the regular or alternative point of departure, except by written permission from the parent or guardian, approved by the principal, special education director, transportation supervisor or the parent or guardian meets the bus to pick up the child.

Students will not be allowed to go home (unless on the same bus) with other students due to allotted space on the bus.

Routes

Each bus shall have a regular route as approved by the Transportation Director. Buses shall adhere to these routes unless changes are approved and except in cases of emergencies.

Individual Lanes and Driveways

Written permission should be obtained from property owners before their yard or circle drive is used for a turn around point.

Coolers on Buses and In School Vehicles

1. Each employee is charged with the responsibility to be observant for possible possession or usage of alcoholic beverages on or about a school bus, other vehicles, on school premises, or at any school activity wherever the activity might be conducted.

2. Small, individual coolers may be used by individual students for food and nonalcoholic drinks. Teachers, administrators, and other school personnel may inspect any cooler at any time as a condition of allowing the cooler to be taken on a school vehicle and/or to a school activity.

3. Large coolers for a team or group may be used only by the coach or sponsor to provide food and nonalcoholic drinks for the team or group. In all instances whereby large coolers are used, the coach and/or sponsor shall inspect and fully supervise the contents of such cooler.

PROCEDURE FOR SCHOOL DISTRICT VEHICLE REQUESTS

Whenever possible, a district vehicle will be assigned for school business. Employees who choose to use their own vehicle will not receive mileage. Mileage will be paid only when authorized.

1. Every attempt, when possible, should be made to submit a transportation request two weeks in advance of the date the vehicle is needed.

2. All school vehicles will be picked up and returned to the parking lot where they were assigned. Please do not park in visitor parking zones.

3. School vehicles are not to be taken home without permission from the Superintendent or Transportation Supervisor.

4. All school vehicles should have at least 1/2 or more fuel left in fuel tank when returned. If you are unable to fuel the vehicle upon its return because of fueling stations being closed, notify the Transportation Supervisor the following morning.

5. Drivers must fill out the required paperwork for mileage, destination and students transported and return the paperwork when returning the keys.

6. Drivers should keep the interior of the vehicle clean. If it is not clean when picked up, notify the Transportation Supervisor.

7. School vehicles are to be used for school business only.

8. School vehicles must be kept locked at all times. If found unlocked notify the Transportation Supervisor.

9. School employees and/or sponsors are the only authorized personnel to operate school vehicles. Students not employed by the district nor enrolled in drivers' training are not authorized the use of a district owned vehicle.

ACCIDENT AND EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

If a driver is involved in any type of accident, the driver must fill out a complete report. DO NOT take the blame - DO NOT make any statements to anyone except duly authorized authorities at the scene of the accident - DO NOT blame anyone or anything; just report the facts to the law enforcement investigator.

Accident reports and forms for all information regarding the accident are available at the bus barn office and should be completed as soon as possible after the accident. Any accident regardless how minor it must be reported immediately to duly authorized authorities. (Kansas Rules & Regulations: 36-13-34)

CELL PHONE USE

USD #389 has equipped all of the buses with cell phones with all the phone numbers needed in case of an emergency.

It is the responsibility of all drivers to make sure their phones are on at all times while they are on the bus.

Phones are only to be used for emergency and activities update on arrival time. This is only in effect if arrival time differs from original scheduled time.

Personal calls are prohibited from the bus cell phones unless it is an emergency.

JOB REQUIREMENTS

All drivers will report to the bus barn fifteen (15) minutes before their scheduled departure time to pre-trip. During the winter months drivers should report early enough to warm up the vehicle and make sure it is ready to drive; with mirrors and windows free of ice.

The driver shall inspect each transportation vehicle and complete the pre-trip inspection form before each trip. The completed log shall be turned in to the Transportation Supervisor's office daily.

Any mechanical problems with the vehicles need to be written and turned into the Transportation Supervisor's office. If you have a question concerning completed repairs, contact the Transportation Supervisor.

If your assigned vehicle is unavailable, the Transportation Supervisor will assign a spare vehicle for your use. You are expected to do a complete vehicle inspection prior to taking the vehicle and cleaning it when you return. All drivers shall sweep out and/or clean their vehicles once daily and make an attempt to return articles left in the vehicle as soon as possible or take it to the bus barn.

During inclement weather when road conditions are not good, drivers will notify base station of the arrival of the bus or van at each assigned school or of completion of routes and activity trips.

SPECIAL EVENT TRIPS

Immediate family members of the driver or sponsors who are age three and over, will sit behind the driver or with the sponsors, are allowed to ride with the driver upon approval of the Transportation Supervisor and if there is available seating on the bus or vehicle.

PUBLIC RELATIONS

Relationship with the School

Drivers will conduct themselves in a professional manner in all interactions with school personnel.

Drivers are encouraged to make suggestions for the improvements in routes, equipment, etc., for the safety of the students, however these suggestions are to follow procedures established by policy.

Drivers will never exceed load limit regulations on their vehicles nor violate any other transportation regulations.

<u>Relationships with Students</u> Drivers will treat all students with courtesy and respect.

Drivers will be firm but pleasant at all times.

Drivers will explain requests and requirements imposed; i.e. assigning seats, proper care of vehicle and proper order on the bus.

Drivers will not indulge in kidding or acting too familiar with individual students.

Drivers will not argue with students concerning their behavior but will clearly state their expectations.

Drivers will not discharge students anywhere except at the school or their assigned stop.

Drivers will use extreme caution and sound judgment when touching students.

1. Drivers should never discipline students by holding, shaking, or using any physical force.

2. In the event of physical confrontations, first verbally tell the involved individuals to stop in an assertive manner. If the confrontation does not stop and if one or more persons appear to be in physical danger, the driver should use the amount of physical constraint necessary in an attempt to avoid physical damage to any person. The driver should also call or direct a responsible student to call for assistance.

3. The touching of students to show affection and/or appreciation should be done with caution, depending upon the age/maturity and gender of both the student and the driver.

4. Drivers and sponsors will enforce the policy of "no alcohol, drugs or tobacco products used on school property or vehicles" at all times.

Relationship with Parents

Drivers will strive to develop positive relationships with all parents.

Drivers will refer any parent complaints or concerns to the Transportation Supervisor.

Relationship with Public

Most motorists have respect for a school bus/vehicle. They also expect the driver to obey all traffic regulations and set a high example for all drivers.

Relationship with Law Enforcement Officers

The school vehicle driver will work cooperatively with law enforcement officers.

Redress Policy

All employees have the right to be heard and as in every organization there is a chain of command to address these issues. If for some reason you feel your rights have been overlooked or a problem has not been resolved to your satisfaction, you must first discuss the problem or situation with the Transportation Supervisor. If you feel the issue has not been resolved after reviewing it with the Transportation Supervisor, then submit your concern or problems in writing to the Superintendent of Schools.

<u>Activity Riders</u> <u>Guidelines for riding Activity Bus</u>)

Children under four (4) must be restrained in state approved child restraint system at all times.

The building Principals and Transportation Supervisor have the right to terminate a rider's eligibility to ride in a school vehicle at any time.

TRANSPORTATION PICK-UP AND DROP-OFF

1. Only one pick-up and one drop-off location will be allowed to residential/business addresses. One alternate drop-off may be utilized on a different route if determined at the beginning of the school year.

- 2. Students will be required to go to either the permanent address or alternate address.
 - a. Notification of a change from the daily schedule between permanent and alternate addresses needs to be made to Marshall Elementary Office by 2:30 p.m.
- 3. Transporting students from two addresses for shared custodial or child care purposes will be considered under the following conditions:
 - a. The addresses provided must be those that are either a residence or a registered daycare facility.
- 4. Change of locations during the school year will only be approved for the following reasons.
 - a. Change of residence within the district. 48-hour notice must be given.
 - b. Permanent change in a Registered Daycare provider within the district with a 48hour notice. If the daycare is closed, one alternate drop-off is allowed with a 24hour notice.
 - c. Court order involving weekly visitation rights between parents or guardians.
 - d. Any permanent change in student transportation needs to be submitted in writing for approval by the Transportation Director.
- 5. Students will not be allowed to go home (unless on the same route) with other students due to allotted space on the buses.
- 6. Pre-School and Early Childhood Policy
 - a. Parent/Guardians with pre-school or early childhood (ECH) students will need to have a person visibly present at the bus drop-off. If a person is not present and seen by the bus driver, the student will be taken back to the school and the parent/guardian notified. If a parent/guardian is notified that their child is back at the school, it will be the responsibility of the parent/guardian to pick the child up at the school.
 - b. Pre-school and ECH students have the same policy as all the other students if an alternate drop-off is needed. Students will have one primary pick-up and drop-off address with the option of adding an alternate address. If students need to be picked-up at the alternate address, please notify the bus barn by 10:00 a.m.
 - c. A 48-hour notice is required if the student has a change in residential address or daycare provider. Any other changes require a 48-hour notice and approval from the Transportation Director.
- 7. In case of emergencies please contact Marshall Elementary at (620) 583-5537.

BUS DRIVERS PROCEDURES AND REGULATIONS

<u>Requirements</u>

EVERY SCHOOL BUS DRIVER DRIVING A SCHOOL MOTOR VEHICLE FOR STUDENT TRANSPORTATION SHALL HAVE THE FOLLOWING: (91-38-6) Each driver shall complete a first aid and CPR course and shall keep it current. The course is funded by the school district.

Each driver shall complete an approved Defensive Driving Course and shall keep it current. The course is funded by the school district.

Every driver shall complete 8 hours of drivers training every two years.

Each driver shall be required to pass a physical examination performed by a physician licensed by the State of Kansas and shall be kept current. The driver shall be reimbursed \$50 for the cost of the examination fees.

Commercial Driver's License fees of \$35 are reimbursed.

Each driver shall sign and file a loyalty oath with the School Board office prior to the start of employment.

The driver is to allow no one to stand, or sit forward of the first passenger seat, at any time when the bus is moving.

BUS DRIVER DAILY SCHEDULE

The driver is charged with the responsibility for keeping his or her bus in a clean and sanitary condition. The reasons for this are to safeguard the health of the pupils and to reduce the possibility of accidents among passengers from falls. Also, a clean bus induces a better attitude among the students and will serve to prolong the life of the bus and create a factorable impression of the school district to the general public.

Daily schedule for cleaning the school bus

- 1. Sweep floor and steps
- 2. Dust seats after sweeping
- 3. Clean windshield, rear window and mirrors
- 4. Report presence of fumes
- 5. Check all emergency exits
- 6. Clean side windows when necessary

Before the bus is operated each day or shift, the driver shall inspect his/her vehicle. The daily inspection is required on pre-trip and post-trip forms.

ROUTE ASSIGNMENTS

The Transportation Supervisor will make all regular route and bus assignments based on the locations, personality of those on the route, and the number of students to be transported.

If a driver requests a route change, he/she must request reasons for such a change.

When necessary, the Supervisor, with the Superintendents approval, may change any regular and extra pay routes deemed necessary for the safety of transporting students and for the best interest of the district at large. The driver will be notified in writing by the Supervisor of this change. Open routes will be available to any permanent a.m./p.m. route driver and then to any substitutes with full time availability. Each driver will have the opportunity to apply for the open route.

SUBSTITUTE BUS DRIVERS

Substitute bus drivers shall meet such qualifications as prescribed by state regulations for substitute drivers and shall be paid an hourly amount approved for substitute drivers.

INTERIOR LIGHTING

Sufficient lighting in the interior of each bus shall be in operation whenever the bus headlights are on and passengers are on the bus.

Sufficient lighting shall be interpreted to mean no less than one rear interior light.

RESPONSIBILITY OF DRIVER AND SPONSOR ON BUS TRIPS Driver:

- 1. Safety of passengers.
- 2. Safe operation of vehicle.
- 3. Find out before trip the shortest route, which can be traveled safely to the town scheduled.
- 4. Cooperate with sponsor but keep in mind safety of passengers and vehicle.
- 5. Let sponsor know that you expect discipline to be handled by the sponsor.
- 6. If a discipline problem occurs request sponsor to handle the problem.
- 7. Inspect the interior of the bus for any new damage.

Sponsor:

1. Will maintain discipline including following the bus rules and regulations.

2. State regulations place the driver in overall charge of the bus. The sponsor shall work cooperatively with the driver and have the responsibility of student control on the bus. A sponsor shall be seated far enough back in the bus so as to sufficiently supervise the activities in the entire bus including the back seats.

3. Will visit with the driver before the trip to find out what the driver expects from sponsor and students.

4. Will inform the driver of the time and place to load students after events.

5. Will expect driver to notify sponsor if driver feels discipline is not being maintained by sponsor.

6. Will remain on the bus until all students are delivered to their drop-off destinations.

The safety of the students and vehicle is of first importance on activity trips. The judgment of the driver as to the speed for road conditions, route discipline needed, is the drivers' responsibility.

Complaints by driver or sponsor will be expressed after the trip is completed. Any complaint by the driver in regard to the sponsor of students will be filed in writing with the Transportation Supervisor who will send a copy to the Activities Director or building Principal for action. Transportation Supervisor will be notified of the corrective action. Several parties shall share the responsibility for keeping the interior and exterior of each bus as clean as possible. For example, students shall be instructed to keep the bus clean and may be detailed for cleanup chores if necessary. For extreme messes or lack of cooperation, individuals or groups can be denied subsequent use of school transportation.

Any complaint by the sponsor in regard to the driver will be filed in writing with the Activities Director or the building Principal who will send a copy to the Transportation Supervisor. Activities Director or Principal will be notified, of the corrective action.

SCHOOL BUS ACTIVITY TRANSPORTATION POLICY

When it is necessary to provide transportation for USD #389 students to and from a school sponsored activity, it will be the school's responsibility to make arrangements for the transportation of all participating students.

1. School transportation in a school vehicle will be furnished by the school district for all activities, which involve the transportation of students.

2. All participants in the activity shall ride to and from the activity on a school vehicle - unless covered by the policy by which a parent can pick up the child, or unless approval is acquired from the Principal for special arrangements. Approval must be in writing with a copy forwarded to the Transportation Supervisor.

3. School personnel shall not transport students to or from school activities in private vehicles unless approved by Superintendent.

4. District owned transportation should be utilized when feasible and available. Submit an activity/transportation request form to the building administrator.

5. Employees using school vehicles are responsible for filling the fuel tank and notifying the Transportation Supervisor of any concerns relative to the vehicle.

6. When parents request that their students return home with them, students will be released to their parents by the parent reporting personally to the sponsor in charge and signing them off the bus.

7. Students on an activity trip are expected to conduct themselves in the same orderly fashion they would on a regular bus route.

8. Any conflict, which may occur on an activity trip involving students on the bus or bus driver and individuals not under school authority at that time, should be immediately reported to the Transportation Supervisor, Principal or in their absence the Superintendent.

9. The bus shall not make <u>unauthorized stops on activity trips</u>. Authorized stops are those approved by the Transportation Supervisor.

10. The following procedures shall be used for loading and unloading of students on activity buses:

a. The loading and unloading of students should be conducted off the roadway, highway or street in an area away from vehicular traffic, and whenever possible, in a parking lot. b. Whenever the loading and unloading of students must be conducted on a roadway, highway or street the bus involved shall be parked with the entry door facing away from the roadway.

11. Students being transported in school motor vehicles, which are not classified as buses shall be loaded and unloaded off the roadway, highway, or street in an area away from vehicular traffic, and whenever possible, in a driveway or parking lot. This subsection shall apply to vehicles with a manufacturers capacity rating for 10 or less persons. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 8-2009 effective #-78-22, Aug. 10, 1997, effective May 1, 1978; amended May 1, 1983; amended June 15, 1992).

ROUTES

The right of all students to ride in Eureka USD #389 school vehicles is conditional on their good behavior and observance of the following rules and regulations. Any pupil who violates any of these rules will be subject to disciplinary procedures in accordance to the Board of Education policy in regard to Bus Discipline. <u>The bus is an extension of the classroom, and student handbook policy will be followed in addition to the following</u>

1. The driver is in full charge of the bus and the pupils. Pupils shall obey the driver respectfully and promptly. The bus driver may assign seating.

2. Pupils shall obey and respect the orders of all school employees-bus drivers, teachers, secretaries, administrators, etc.

3. Pupils loading and unloading at any bus stop will abide by the rules. No rowdy behavior or "horse play" will be allowed.

4. Students should be on time in meeting the bus. The student should be waiting for the bus and not the bus waiting for the student.

a. Students that are habitually late in meeting the bus may be left.

b. The bus may wait for the students if the students are making a visible attempt to reach the bus.

c. The "Rule of Thumb" is to wait no longer than one (1) minute in town and 2 minutes out of town.

d. Parents with more than one bus rider should send their students out to meet the bus together.

e. The Transportation Supervisor or Building Principal will notify the parent if bus riders are habitually late.

5. Students who are not going to ride the bus in the morning should call the Transportation Supervisor at 620-583-8205 or 620-750-0165 or the bus driver.

6. Students that do not ride the bus for three (3) consecutive days in the morning, and have not notified the bus driver or transportation supervisor of their intention not to ride, will not be picked up again until they have notified the transportation supervisor.

7. The driver will use his/her judgment on whether or not they will go down a private drive. This situation will be at the drivers and supervisors discretion whether or not the drive way is safe enough under weather conditions and the condition of the driveway. If the drive way appears to be unsafe for travel by bus, the driver and supervisor will evaluate and make a decision that ensures the safety of the students and unnecessary abuse to the bus.

BUS RULES

1. Students are to obey the following rules:

a. Stand on the side walk or side of the road, out of the roadway, while waiting for the bus.

b. No animals, snakes, spiders, bugs or any other type of animal will be allowed on the bus, except when pre-arranged with the school, and then transported in plastic containers. Transportation supervisor and bus driver must be notified if so authorized.

c. Keep books, packages, coats and all other objects out of the aisles. Aisles must remain clear of all obstacles at all times.

d. Paper or other rubbish is not to be thrown on the bus floor. Trash is to be placed in the wastebasket.

e. No one will damage or deface the bus in any way. Any damage to the bus is to be reported to the driver at once.

f. Students will avoid any unnecessary conversation with the driver of the bus. Do not talk loud or distract the driver's attention. Remember that your safety is in the driver's hands.

g. Outside of normal conversation, classroom conduct is to be observed.

h. Do not throw anything out of the bus windows.

i. Safety requires that students do not lean their heads out of windows or extend their hands out of the windows.

j. When the bus is in motion, students must not change seats or try to get on or off the bus.

k. Students may not leave the bus without the driver's consent except at their assigned bus stop or at school.

1. Students should get on and off the bus promptly, without stopping to visit.

m. Courtesy and respect must be shown to fellow passengers, persons along the route and Bus driver. <u>Profanity on the bus will not be tolerated</u>.

n. No drugs, alcohol or cereal malt beverage will be permitted on the bus.

o. Use of tobacco in any form is not permitted on the bus or at any loading or unloading area.

p. Riders will remain quiet when approaching a railroad stop.

q. In case of a road emergency, riders are to remain on the bus unless in a dangerous situation.

r. No weapons of any type, except side arms carried by a law enforcement office shall be transported on a bus.

s. No radios/CD/MP3 Players, cameras and other electronic devices can be disruptive to the driver. Temporary confiscation will result if the driver is disturbed by their use.

t. No glass containers of any kind will be permitted on the bus.

u. Pupils shall obey all bus sponsors appointed by the school officials.

The above rules and regulations will apply to any trip under school sponsorship.

AFTER LEAVING THE BUS

1. When crossing the road, go at least ten (10) feet in front of the bus, stop, check traffic,

watch for the bus driver's signal then cross the road. Never walk behind the parked bus.

2. Students living on the right side of the road should immediately leave the bus and stay clear of traffic.

3. Help look out for their safety and comfort of younger children.

4. The drivers will not discharge riders at places other than the regular stop, except by proper authorization from the parent and school official.

BUS DRIVER PROCEDURES FOR HANDLING STUDENT DISCIPLINE SITUATIONS

The main objective of the bus driver is to transport students to and from school in a safe manner. To do this, it is necessary for the driver to be alert to those things on the road, which will effect his/her driving, and not to be distracted by student misbehavior. However, we all know that student-riding time with other students can lead to situations that are distracting to the driver, and harmful to other students.

Bus drivers are in charge of the bus and the students being transported, and they have the authority to manage the bus as needed.

When situations of misbehavior arise:

1. The bus driver should attempt to handle the situation with a strict verbal warning.

2. If repeated verbal warnings do not resolve the situation or if the student continues the problem, then complete a written Bus Conduct Form and give copies to the appropriate people (Student/parent, Building Principal, Transportation Supervisor and yourself). (1st Notice) Building Principal is to communicate with the parent and the student.

3. If the student continues acts of misbehavior, the student can be suspended from riding the bus for one (1) full day. The suspension of riding privileges cannot take place until the transportation supervisor has contacted the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. A completed Bus Conduct Form (2nd Notice) is also routed to the appropriate people.

4. In cases of vulgarity directed at the bus driver, fighting, or intimidation and harassment of other students the suspension (up to 30 school days) may be given without prior warnings. The Transportation Supervisor will contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person.

5. If the student continues behavior which is keeping the bus driver from doing their job as described as the main objective then the driver should complete a Bus Conduct Report and meet with the building Principal, Transportation Supervisor, student and parent/guardian, to determine the next course of action relative to the student and transportation.

6. If situation continues after this point then the bus driver or Building Principal should file a written report to the Superintendent for further action.

Transporting students to and from school is a very important job and people in this position are to be commended for their service. To do the job well however, takes more skill than just driving. Get to know the students (in a professional manner), let them know you care about them, and that you have a job to do and are proud of doing it well. This will help to build bridges for them to understand your needs and it will help to build mutual respect and trust.

SCHOOL BUS DISCIPLINE POLICY

Good discipline is a necessary part of a school transportation system. The safety of both driver and students is affected by the general overall discipline on the school bus. The School Board supports fully the recommended rules for school bus drivers and students, as printed in

"The Laws and Regulations Governing School Pupil Transportation in Kansas" as published by the Kansas State Department of Education, (School Bus Safety Education Unit)

It shall be the duty of the bus driver to enforce the Kansas School Transportation Regulations, Standards, Statutes and Guidelines as recommended. The bus driver may seek the assistance of the school Principal in cases where the driver deems assistance is necessary.

The bus driver shall have the support of the Superintendent and School Board to perform duties in accordance with the policies set forth in this document.

A. <u>PROCEDURE</u>

Notification to Parents of Misbehavior

In cases where a student is guilty of misconduct or persistent disobedience, such misbehavior will be reported to the parent with an explanation of what the student is doing wrong and what is expected of the student.

B. <u>SUSPENSIONS</u>

1. In cases where misconduct or persistent disobedience continues after written notification to the parent, bus driver, transportation director and principal has exhausted other disciplinary means, the Principal may suspend the student from riding the bus for a determined amount of time.

2. A student must be delivered to the student's regular stop. No student can be suspended from the bus enroute or at the school. The parent shall be notified either verbally or by telephone on the day, which the student is suspended, that the student is suspended from riding the bus.

3. A written report of the details involved in suspension of a student shall be sent to the building Principal's office.

4. A suspension may be subject to the review of the Superintendent if the parent requests such a review.

C. EXPULSION

1. In cases where gross misconduct or persistent disobedience continues after written notification to the parent, the Principal or Superintendent may expel the student from riding the bus. Item C2 in the policy shall apply in all cases of expulsion or suspension.

2. In cases where a student has been expelled from riding the bus, the parent shall be notified either verbally or by telephone on the day that the student has been expelled from the bus. A written report of the details involved in the expulsion shall be sent to the parent and the Superintendent. No expulsion shall extend beyond the current school year. A parent may file a written request for a board hearing concerning any bus expulsion with the Clerk of the Board within ten (10) days of receiving the notice of expulsion.

3. The Board recognizes the fact that circumstances may arise which could entail immediate suspension or expulsion of a student; rather than going through steps one and two of this

policy. In such cases, item two "Notification to Parents and Report to Superintendent" shall apply.

DRIVER DISCIPLINE PROCEDURE

The driver \underline{may} be suspended without pay after being charged and \underline{may} be terminated upon conviction for any one or more of the following:

1. Violation of vehicle traffic codes while driving a school vehicle, which is used for transporting school students/school employees or persons outside of school related activities.

2. Violations of established rules and regulations set by Kansas State Transportation Regulation Standards, Statutes or established rules set forth in the Eureka Board of Education Transportation Handbook.

3. Inability to maintain control of passengers in a manner consistent with maintaining a safe transportation environment for students.

4. Insubordination:

a. Any time a transportation employee willfully refuses to follow a direct order or instruction given by the Transportation Supervisor or Superintendent, that employee can be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

- 5. Failure to follow any of the policies outlined in this handbook will result in:
 - a. First Offense Verbal warning with documentation
 - b. Second Offense Written reprimand
 - c. Third Offense Suspension without pay
 - d. Fourth Offense Termination

TERMINATION

The driver shall be immediately suspended without pay after being charged and terminated upon conviction of any of the following:

- 1. DUI/DWI or drug related charges.
- 2. Improper conduct with a student.
- 3. Suspension or loss of CDL for traffic related charges.
- 4. Hit and run vehicle homicide and/or reckless driving.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL LEAVE

Whenever a school bus driver is unable to drive for any reason, notification should be given to the Transportation Supervisor at the earliest moment possible.

Driver will give a two (2) week notice of voluntary leaves of absences, unless an emergency leave of absence is requested. Drivers should give one (1) week notice before taking a personal leave day. The Transportation Director has the right to deny the request for personal leave, due to number of drivers needed.

The Transportation Supervisor shall be responsible for securing a substitute driver.

RAILROAD CROSSINGS

EACH SCHOOL BUS SHALL STOP AT ALL RAILROAD CROSSINGS. PROCEEDING ONLY WHEN IT IS DETERMINED THE TRACKS ARE CLEAR IN BOTH DIRECTIONS. The driver shall bring the school bus to a full stop at a distance of not less than 15 feet not more than 50 feet before crossing a grade crossing with the tracks of any railroad, shutting off all fans radios, opening the drivers window and service door, and shall not proceed until he/she can do safely. Use four-way flashers only, and turn them on about 300' before railroad tracks. (Exceptions as are outlined in Kansas School Transportation Regulations, Standards, Statutes and Guidelines 36-26-1).

Eureka Junior Senior High School Activity Bus Transportation

The Activity Bus Transportation is designed to transport all students who are involved in after school activities that are sponsored by the Kansas State High School Athletic Association (KSHSAA.) These activities include sporting events (Football, Volleyball, Cross-Country, Golf, Wrestling, Basketball, Track, Softball, Baseball, etc.) and sponsored activities (Cheerleading, Scholars Bowl, Band/ Choir, Forensics, STUCO).

This activity bus will not transport students who have stayed for discipline reasons and/or individual student needs.

For the transportation to be efficient and beneficial to the needs of the students, it is important that students sign-up to ride the activity bus. Please make sure your student's coach and/or sponsor is notified that they will need activity bus transportation.

The activity bus will only run at 5:45pm on practice days. The activity bus departs from the east side of the high school at 5:45. The activity bus will not run if there is no one signed up to ride.

If you have questions or concerns about the EJSHS Activity Bus Transportation, please contact, Russell Hewitt at 583-8205.